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The 01d Post Office building is a two-and-a-half story red brick building, When it
was built in 1861, there was one main room on the first floor, a basement, and bedrooms
opened off a main hallway on the second floor, Five semicircular arched windows with
full arches dominate the first floor facade while 6/6 double~hung sash windows with
segmental arches correspond on the second story., These window types are also on the
sides of the building.

Early in the history of the building one of the first-floor windows was expanded to
provide a front dooxr. A small smoke house was built adjacent to the main block at
this time. In 1881, a major addition was made to the rear of the building. This addec
two smaller rooms to the main floor, more bedr--oms to the second story, and the lattice
work porch on the side of the addition.

Between 1894 and 1900 the oriel window on the south side was constructed. When the
Post Office leased the building in 1928 it altered the windows on the sides of the
building: two of the seven windows on the north side and three of the 10 windows on
the south side were squared and bars were added while one window on each side was
blocked up completely, In 1932, the dormer on the front of the house was added, and

a shed was attached to the smoke house, Also at that time, the third floor was divided
into rooms. In the late 1950's the ground level porch was removed because it lay
within the highway right of way. Pillars supporting the balcony were replaced with
diagonal braces at that time.
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The Tester & Polin General Merchandise Store is significant to the history of the Alma
area as a representative building from the city's short lived boom period and as a focus
of the commercial 1ife of the area during that time, During the years of prosperity and
growth following the settlementof Alma, this building housed two mercantile firms which
served Alma and river commercial interests as well as Alma's hinterland. The people
who owned and operated these businesses played important roles in the development of
both Alma and northern Buffalo County.

In 1861, Gottleib Iberg erected this brick building to serve as both dwelling house and
dry goods store. John A. Tester and Peter Polin purchased the building in 1866. They
continued and expanded Iberg's establishment., Tester and Polin were driving forces

in the development of Alma. Their store served as a focal point of early Alma's bustling
commercial life, and consequently was an important meeting place. During this period
Alma was the entrepot for northern Buffalo County, it also served an important booming
and logdriving center at nearby Beef Slough, and, before Minnesota-side cities became
ascendant because of the railroad, it was an important river port, '"The late Lyman J.
Clafin, one of the first settlers... called their [Tester and Polin] the fathers of the
upper part of the country, without whom the settlement would have languished and have
been crippled for many years."” Peter Polin was the county treasurer and post master
while John Tester served as the deputy county treasurer and in 1883 was elected to the
state assembly. Martin Polin, brother of Peter, purchased the business and became the
first mayor of the newly chartered city of Alma in 1885,

The dry goods store is characteristic of the red brick construction of several of the
early buildings of Alma, a typical upper Mississippi River town. Because it was built
quickly in anticipation of Alma's boom, the form of the building was dictated more by
its projected function rather than by pretention to style. Although unsophisticated,
the vernacular style of the building is simple and graceful; it achieves harmony and

is aesthetically pleasing. The building has been altered over the years but it retains
its fundamental integrity.

Since the turn of the century the building has been employed as a post office, city
library, dentist office, restaurant, antique shop and retail store. Presently, the
building is occupied by an art gallery, frame and antique shop. The owners also have
an artist studio and make their home in six of the second floor rooms. They are
interested in obtaining a grant.

Footnote .
1z, Kessinger, History of Buffalo County (Alma, Wis,: Buffalo County Press, 1888),
p.612.,.
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